1.
We would like to have a set of the bioshield construction drawings. What do we need to do to obtain copies of them?


A. Review the reference CDs.


2.
L.15 Proposal Information to be Provided by the Offeror requires in addition to ten (10) copies of the required proposal information detailed in the table within L.15 a CD/ROM electronic version organized as separate file, in searchable PDF file formats and as specified for schedule price. 

L.18 Preparation of Volume Three – Cost, Paragraph (i) requires in addition to hard copies, the proposal shall be prepared and submitted in “Word for Windows” version Microsoft Word 2003 and/or “Excel for Windows, version Microsoft Excel 2003 formats.

Please clarify if the requirements of L.15 apply to Volume I Mission Suitability/Technical and Volume II Past Performance and Experience only and L.18 (i) applies to Volume III Cost only.


A. Yes

3.         L.18. 2 General Instructions Paragraph (e) states that the Cost Volume for the Offeror, and any major subcontractors, shall consist of five (5) parts with each part consisting of various Sections. Each Part and Section shell be clearly tabbed and labeled. Table L-1 outlines the structure of the five (5) parts and their respective sections.

Table L-1 delineates only four (4) parts as well as the instructions in L.18.

Please verify the number of Parts to be included shall be included in the Volume III Cost

A. There are only four parts to the cost volume; the reference to five parts was in error.
4.
We request a two week extension for submitting questions and a three week extension for the proposal due date.  It is taking us longer than anticipated to develop an accurate cost estimate for the soil work because the scope of work regarding soil remediation is not as well defined as the building D&D scope.  An extension would allow us to pose questions that would reduce the uncertainties and develop a reasonable cost proposal.

A. A two week extension is being granted on the proposal due date, the new proposal due date is 
February 13, 2008, COB. This is the only extension being granted.
5.
The RFP, Section L.18, page 50, subsection 2e, states that the “Cost volume for the Offeror and subcontractors shall consist of five separate parts ….  Table L-1 outlines the structure of the five parts and their respective sections.”  Table L-1, page 51 and 52, however, shows only four parts for the cost volume.  Please clarify.

A. There are only four parts to the cost volume, the reference to five parts was in error.

6.
A previously answered question and the RFP, Section L.16, allow use of 10 point font on 11x17 pull-outs.  Would NASA consider allowing 10 point font to be used in graphics and tables on letter size paper?

A.  See L.16
Preparation of Volume One Mission Suitability/Technical


‘Mission Suitability/Technical Shall Consist Of Five (5) Specific Sub Factors:  Understanding Of 
The Requirements, Key And Critical Personnel, Management Plan, Risk Management Plan, and 
Phase-In-Plan. The information shall not exceed 125 pages excluding the one (1) original signed 
copy of the standard form 1449 of this solicitation.  A page is defined as one side of an 8-1/2” x 
11” sheet of paper unless otherwise specified below. Offers may be submitted on single or double-
sided sheets, but shall not exceed the page limitation for this volume. Text font size of no less than 

12 point shall be used. Conceptual sketches and the Summary Schedule (see below) may be 
provided as 11x17” pull-outs, and are to count against the page limit. Pull-out font sizes may be 
no less than 10 point.’

7.
The RFP, Section K.4(b) lists representations regarding HUBZone small businesses and joint ventures pursuant to 13 CFR Part 126.  Will NASA accept a SDVOSB in a joint venture pursuant to 13 CFR Part 125?


A. This procurement is a 100% set-aside for Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned 
Small Business 
Concerns (SDVO SBC’s), accordingly, only offers from SDVO SBC’s 
will be considered (See p. 
1 of the Solicitation).  The competition is not open to 
other Small Business program participants, 
including HUBZone SBC’s, unless they also qualify as SDVO SBC’s (See 13 CFR Sec. 
125.13). 
 The Government will consider offers from SDVO SBC Joint Ventures that meet the requirements 
of 13 CFR Sec. 125.15.
8.
Pursuant to FAR 11.503(a), it appears that the Liquidated Damages clause (RFP, Section F.4, FAR 52.211-11) applies to fixed price contracts.  Additionally, the Default-Fixed-Price Supply and Service clause is not listed in the RFP, Section I, Contract Clauses, as being part of the solicitation.  Will NASA consider deleting the liquidated damages provision, or consider a reduction or loss of fee in lieu of liquidated damages?


A.  No, the Government has added this clause because we believe the timely performance is so 
important that the Government may reasonably expect to suffer damage if the delivery or 
performance is delinquent.
9.
The October 2007 Q&A (#32) on the draft RFP states that the Safety and Health Plan to be submitted as part of the proposal does not count against the Volume 1 page count.  But the final RFP (Sections H.4(a) and L.16.B) indicates that Sub factor B is part of Volume 1 and thus counts as part of the 125 page limit.  Please clarify if the Sub factor B Safety and Health plan counts against the Volume 1 page count. 

A.  The Safety and Health Plan will not count against the Volume 1 page count.
10.
The SOW, section 9.2.2, Monthly Coordination Meetings, states that the support provided by the offeror should follow the requirements of the SOW Section 10.4.1.  The SOW does not have a Section 10.4.1.  What are the requirements being referred to?

A.  Section 10.4.1 of the SOW was removed during an earlier revision.  For purposes of this proposal the offeror may consider the phrase “following the requirements of Section 10.4.1 of this Statement of Work” to be deleted from Section 9.2.2 of the SOW.

11.
Have there been any updates, changes, or realignments of roles and responsibilities as discussed in the Decommissioning Plan organization chart (page 2-56)?

A. There have been no changes or realignments.  There are currently several people filling more than one role as allowed by the D-Plan, but the basic roles and responsibilities are intact.

12.
Can the yearly funds specified in the Project Operating Year funding profile be carried over during the life of the contract?

A. Yes.  The project is funded with “no year money”, meaning money can be carried over the Fiscal Year boundary during the contract.

13.
What instrumentation, calibrations and instrumentation efficiencies will be used for the FSS? What are the make/model of instrument and probe that ORISE will use in the FSS process?
A. NASA has no control over instrument makes/models that ORISE will use to perform any verification survey that the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) may request. Instruments that NASA will use to actually perform the FSS are listed in Section 6.0 of the Final Status Survey Plan.

14
What surface efficiencies (in accordance with ISO 7503-1) will be applied to the FSS? Do these vary between different materials?  If so, please provide all surface efficiencies to be applied.
A. Surface efficiencies may vary based on the various materials involved, physical condition of the structural surface after remediation is performed, and radiation of interest (beta or alpha). At the PBRF, the final surface efficiencies are determined in accordance with site procedures during the survey design process, after remediation is completed and structural surfaces are carefully inspected. During the remediation process, it is acceptable to use the ISO 7503-1 default values of 0.5 for beta-emitters >0.4 MeV and 0.25 for beta-emitters <0.4 MeV and alpha emitters.

15.
What radionuclides will the FSS instruments?
A. Refer to the response to the next question below.

16.
To what efficiencies will the FSS instruments be calibrated (e.g., radionuclides, source type, distance)?

A.  For beta and alpha detectors, calibrations are performed using Tc-99, Sr-90, and Cl-36 for beta and Pu-239 for alpha. For gamma detectors (i.e., sodium iodide detectors) used to perform soil scans, Cs-137 and Co-60 are used. Gamma detectors are windowed to detect the radionuclide of concern, Co-60 and/or Cs-137 (as applicable). All instrument calibrations are performed by a qualified off site vendor.

PBRF performs an efficiency determination for every beta and alpha detector after it is received from the calibration facility and prior to field use.  The efficiency derived during this process is applied to the FSS.  PBRF uses a 150 cm2 Tc-99 source for beta and a 150 cm2 Th-230 source for alpha, which PBRF considers conservative for the radionuclides of interest at the facility. The sources are measured at ½” for beta and <1/8” for alpha.  PBRF uses Cs-137 and Co-60 button sources to calculate the CPM/mrem/hour value for 44-10 gamma detectors that are setup to operate in the window mode. 

17.
Is NASA planning to conduct its own survey after the contractor has completed D&D and prior to the ORISE FSS?

A. Yes, NASA will perform the actual Final Status Survey (FSS) after the contractor has completed D&D. ORISE does not perform the FSS.  ORISE will perform verification surveys only at the request of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC).  NRC field inspectors have also performed verification surveys previously at the PBRF.

18.
How free of paint does NASA want the structural steel?

A. As stated in Section 6.1.2 of the SOW, surfaces shall be clean and free of such things as loose and flaking paint, any protrusions from the surface (such as stub of a bolt), and any other items that would interfere with the safe and efficient application of FSS instrumentation to the surface. Per Section 7.1.7 of the Final Status Survey Plan, surfaces painted to fix loose contamination are remediated before FSS activities begin.  NASA interprets this requirement as 100% paint removal for those suspect areas. For other surfaces painted after site start-up, representative samples are collected in areas where it is suspected that elevated levels of residual radioactivity could have been covered over. Detection sensitivities are adjusted or remediation is performed as directed by the analysis results.  If it is determined that there is no contamination under the paint, and it is otherwise in good condition, then it is only necessary to decontaminate the surface to the Remediation Action Limit.  If that leaves the paint intact, then it can remain.

19.
Will the FSS area factors be applied at 100% or 50% of the DCGL values?

A. 100% - The contractor should strive to remediate structural surfaces and open land areas to levels below the remediation action level (50% of the DCGL) so that it is not necessary to apply any area factor during the FSS data quality assessment process to pass the FSS.

20. 
Have there been any changes to the list of “Government Furnished Equipment” since the RFP was issued?

A. Yes.  The list should now include a second Marcrist Floor Shaver, a Hi-Vac vacuum unit, and a TYREX/Schaeff scaling drum attachment (suitable for use with a bidder furnished Brokk 250).  The Marcrist Floor Shave side unit mentioned in the GFE list is no longer available.

21.
Can NASA clarify the NAICS size standard for this procurement in Section K 1?


A.  562910 (Environmental Remediation Services) with a size standard of 500 employees.
22.
Section L states that the page count for Volume I is 125 pages.  It further states that this page count includes the Safety and Health Plan (Subfactor B).  Since the requirements for the safety and health plan are extensive and require a complete safety and health plan (per Section L), would NASA consider either increasing the page count to include a full safety and health plan or making the safety and health plan exempt from the page count? 


A.  See Question number 9.
23.   
Please detail any site requirements and/or restrictions regarding transportation of contaminated material on-site.  Is there a size or weight restriction for trucks?  Are articulating dump trucks allowable on site roads?


A. The on site roads are capable of handling loads within the Ohio Department of Transportation   
non-specially permitted limits.  Being as the roads involved are not open to the public, there are no 
physical size limits on trucks beyond the occasional overhead 
line.  
24.   
Please provide details on the current groundwater capture and/or diversion system (including sumps) that keep groundwater out of the below grade structures and systems.  Please provide any as-builts or engineering drawings of the current system.

 
A. There are currently 13 active sump pumps on site.  Every below grade structure has at 
least one 
sump.  Water from the sumps is discharged (in accordance with NASA’s NPDES permit 
from the 
Ohio EPA) to the facility’s storm drain system, which exits the site by way of the Waste Effluent 
Monitoring Station.  All discharged water ends up in 
Pentolite Ditch.  Please refer to the drawings 
on the Reference Material disc for drawings that show footer drains, basement plumbing, sump 
details, storm drains, and the WEMS.
25   
Aside from no radiological and RCRA contaminants, are there other (physical) specifications for off-site fill material brought on-site for backfill?  Are there compaction requirements for the various areas to be backfilled?


A. Off site fill material is expected to consist of soil, sand, crushed rock, or similar 
materials that meet the cleanliness requirements stated in the RFP.   It shall not include any off site 
Construction and Demolition Debris, biologic material such as trees or peat, or asphalt or asphalt 
byproduct material.  Since backfilled areas will eventually be simple open fields there are no 
compaction requirements for any areas within the scope of this RFP.
26.  
Would NASA consider granting a two-week extension for this solicitation? 


A. See question number 4.
27. 
 On the CD that contains the Addendum Material (Dated December 3, 2007), the summary states that the following areas are removed:  Please confirm that these areas are removed from scope for both radiological decontamination and for surface preparation for FSS (i.e. these areas will be ready for FSS with NO work by the successful bidder).

 

a. Primary Pump House 

b. Quadrants and Canals (in both Bldg 1111 and 1112) 

c. Hot Retention Basin vault 

d. Bldg 1111 – Sub Pile room 


A. For purposes of bidding this RFP the Offeror shall consider work in the above listed 
areas to 
be complete - that is they are ready for FSS.  If it turns out that some work remains to be 
done in 
any of these areas at the time of contract start that would be new scope and would have to be 
negotiated between NASA and the contractor performing the work.
28. 
Can NASA supply bidders with more detailed radiological surveys of the areas that are still contaminated or spot-contaminated so we can get a better idea of the total surface area requiring decontamination and select the most efficient means of decontamination?


A. The characterization database already provided is the best currently available 
information.  
Bidders should use this as the basis of their bids, and feel free to make any necessary assumptions 
if there are gaps in the provided information.  The bidder should explain the basis for any such 
assumption, and if appropriate the impact the assumption has on the proposed approach. 
 

29.
 Please clarify areas where paint is flaking.  Does NASA simply want flaking paint removed or all paint (flaking and non-flaking) removed?  At the second site visit, it was discussed that all paint should be removed in areas of flaking, but the SOW states that only flaking paint should be removed.


A. The intention is that when the contractor turns an area over to NASA it is ready for FSS.  This 
includes the removal of all currently flaking paint, as well as any paint that would reasonably be 
expected to continue to peel within the month or two it will take for NASA to get into an area to 
perform FSS.  Whether this means that a given area should 
be taken down to a bare surface, or 
that certain areas of existing paint can be ‘feathered in’ is a judgment call on the part of the 
offeror.
30.
 Are any residual liquids present in the cold retention basins?  Does NASA expect that groundwater has infiltrated into these basins?  Can NASA provide any characterization data for any liquids in the cold retention basins?


A. The Cold Retention Basins (CRBs) currently contain ground water.  The basins were 
known 
during operational times to have free communication with the surrounding groundwater.  During 
previous decommissioning work the CRBs were pumped down to allow the removal of the rubber 
liner material and assorted piping lines.  At that time the water was monitored during discharge to 
the storm drains, and was consistently below MDA.  The only contamination found was 
trace 
amounts in the few inches of sediment in the bottom of the tanks.  This was removed by 
hand 
and sent off site for disposal.  The CRBs have since refilled, on their own, from intruding ground 
water.  
31
Please provide additional detailed information regarding the legacy waste containers (drums, Sealands, etc) including radiological and hazardous characterization and physical content.  Current (incumbent) contractors have detailed knowledge of these containers including process knowledge; however, only very limited information was provided to the other bidders.  Having only this limited information will cause us to have to make assumptions that may be evaluated poorly against the incumbent that has detailed information.


A. The volume and details of what is awaiting disposal from the site is a ‘moving target’, 
and 
NASA considers that the information provided on the Reference Material disk is sufficient for bid 
purposes.  Please prepare your proposal based on the information provided, and explain clearly 
any assumptions that you made.  NASA will fairly allow for assumptions made in the face of 
missing information.  NASA will be looking for a demonstration of an understanding of how 
various waste streams need to be handled and packaged, as well as the proposed disposal path.  
  

32.
 Was the intent of NASA to include the Work Breakdown Structure and Dictionary in the page count of Subfactor 3 (Volume 1)?  If so, what is the desired WBS level breakdown to allow ample estimate for page count?


A. This information is intended to be contained within the page count.  A level 2 WBS is 
expected 
as a minimum, though the offeror is free to go to whatever level they believe is necessary to 
convey their intentions.
33.
 Was the intent of NASA to include the Project S schedule in the page count of Subfactor 3 (Volume 1)?  If so, what is the desired WBS level breakdown to allow ample estimate for page count?

A. This information is intended to be contained within the page count.  A level 2 WBS is expected as a minimum, though the offeror is free to go to whatever level they believe is necessary to convey their intentions.

34.
Can NASA provide the daily throughput of below grade sumps (per sump) to assist the bidder in the requirement water management components while sumps are off line? 

 
A. NASA does not have quantitative values for the flow through the sumps.  The best 
available data on subsurface flow is available in the Hydrogeologic Report for Plum Brook Station 
that is part of the Reference Material previously provided.  From a qualitative point of view 
NASA can confirm that most of the sumps remain fairly active throughout the year, particularly 
those that are deeper below grade.

35.
Is it possible to obtain a bidders list for this project?



A. Below is a list of Companies that have declared themselves as Prime based on the draft RFP. 
This list is not inclusive and does not mandate any company to submit an offer. The teaming 
arrangements are not available.
  

	AES Logistical Solutions

	MOTA Corp

	American DND, Inc

	e-PEAK, Inc

	TTL Associates

	LATA

	Clauss Construction

	ELR


36.
There is a section regarding Liquidated Damages, which imposes very significant penalties for not meeting the contracted scheduled completion dates.  With such stiff penalties for not completing on time, there must be some significant cost savings to the government for early completion.  Will there be incentive clauses allowed to be included in the contract for early completion?


A.  No incentive clauses are to be included
37.
Since the completion of the on site waste inventory included in the RFP, there has been additional waste generated.  Can you provide the current status of the on site waste inventory to be included in the contract?


A. While there are additional wastes that have been generated since the inventory on the 
Reference Material disc was prepared, they are only additions to previously identified waste 
streams.  There are no new waste streams.   NASA believes that the waste inventory information 
already provided is adequate to allow Offerors to understand the nature and relative volumes of 
our waste streams, and to propose their means of packaging and disposal sufficient to enable a fair 
evaluation of that proposal. NASA 
believes this is sufficient for bid preparation and evaluation.   
No updated waste inventory information will be provided.
38.
Will it be acceptable to provide a proposal schedule in Primavera P3 in lieu of version P5?


A. It is acceptable to provide the proposal schedule in Primavera P3, but please be aware 
that P5 
will be required to be used by the successful offeror in performing the work.
39.
Please provide characterization data pertaining to the activated region of the bio-shield and/or NASA's definition of what portion of the bio-shield must be removed.


A. The only currently available additional characterization information on the bio-shield 
is found 
in a report entitled “Investigation of Radioactivity in Concrete”.  This report presents the 
results 
of concrete core borings taken around the site, mostly in the bio-shield.  Those interested 
can find 
a copy of this report as an attachment to this announcement. See “Investigation of Radioactivity 
in PBRF”.
40.
Are the buried piping systems from the Fan House, PPH and Waste Handling Building in scope?  


A. Any buried piping (i.e. piping not under existing structures) is in scope for proposal 
purposes.
41.
Please provide the basis for the adjusted gross DCGL’s provided in Column C of NASA spreadsheet "Modified Characterization Inventory Jan 07 (1) 62 02 019", particularly the radionuclide distribution that was used to calculate these values".


A. The information to answer this question may be found in PBF_TBD-7-001, “Adjusted 
Gross 
DCGLs for Structural Surfaces’.  This document is available only in a PDF format and is 18MB; a 
copy of this Technical Basis Document is available by request. To request the document contact 
Julie Fuerstenberg at julie.a.fuerstenberg@nasa.gov.
42.
Can you refer me to a bidders' list for the following pending activity. I would like to make the various contenders aware of our XXXXXXX technology.


A. All of the information pertaining to this procurement is available at www.FEDBIZOPPS.gov or 
the NASA Plum Brook web site. The RFP is electronic; therefore, we do not have a list of possible 
proposers. You will need to make your own teaming arrangements.

